
Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  1 of 14 

SELINSGROVE BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2008 - 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Pres. C. Handlan, V. Pres. J. Herb, C/P D. Anderson, 
C/P S. Hendricks, C/P M. Inch, C/P D. Mengel, and C/P E. Viker 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Solicitor R. Cravitz; Mgr. J. Bickhart; Mayor P. Carroll; Police Chief T. Garlock; 
Borough Treasurer Sheri Badman; Recording Secretary Dawne Long; DH&L Representative Ken Stettler; 
Daily Item Reporter Damian Gessel; Borough Residents Garry Beaver and Joseph Siro; CEDA-COG 
Representatives Mike Miller and Bill Seigel; Derck & Edson Representative Jennifer Lee; Susquehanna 
University Representatives Mike Coyne and Dave Henry 
 
OTHERS ABSENT:   None 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 
 
Pres. Handlan called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Mgr. Bickhart called the roll. 
 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MINUTES FROM SPECIAL MEETING OF DECEMBER 27, 
2007 AND MEETING OF JANUARY 7, 2008 
 
C/P Mengel asked that Page 6 of the January 7, 2008 minutes be changed to more accurately reflect that 
after receiving notification from Chief Garlock that she had a phone call, she needed to leave the meeting.  
She stated that the way it is stated in the minutes presently it insinuates that she left under other 
circumstances. 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to approve the minutes as changed.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD: 
 
Borough Police Chief, Thomas Garlock: 
 
Presentation of Police Report for December 2007 – Chief Garlock reported that for December there 
were 28 serious crimes and 29 other crimes reported, for a total of 57 crimes.  In December 2006 there 
were 35 serious crimes reported.  There were 387 calls for service for December, bringing the total for the 
year 2007 to 4,418 calls for service.  There were three robberies reported in December, one of which has 
been successfully concluded and two of which are outstanding.  All three of these were strong-arm type 
robberies which are by bodily force, not by weapons.  Mgr. Bickhart asked about a rumor his wife heard 
about purses being taken from shopping carts at Weis’.  Chief Garlock replied this was one of the 
robberies reported, and it was a single incident. 
 
Presentation of Annual Police Report for 2007 – Chief Garlock reported that the last two pages of this 
report give a summary.  Serious crimes were lagging through the year and then caught up toward the end 
of the year, as expected.  They had been running 5 to 6% below normal.  At year end they were 
statistically unchanged, although there were 374 serious crimes reported in 2007 as compared to 369 in 
2006.  The statistical deviation even with adding in figures from 2005 is less than 2%.  Of the serious 
crimes, increases were noted in assaults, burglaries and arsons, with decreases in theft.  Burglaries 
increased 43.1% for the year.  Many of these were pattern burglaries which have been successfully 
solved.  All other crimes, the Part 2 crimes, increased 5.2% in 2007.  In 2005 there were 593 Part 2 
crimes as compared to 738 in 2007, so over the two-year period there was a more significant increase.  



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  2 of 14 

Clearances of crimes have increased 7.9% from 2006 to 2007.  During 2006 there had actually been a 
decrease in clearances.  The increase in clearances is due to improved management of criminal 
investigations throughout the course of the year.  Compared to the National Violent Crime Index, 
Selinsgrove is extremely high due to the number of assaults in the Borough.  Having a university and a 
public school within the jurisdiction increases those types of crimes so the numbers are not out of line 
when compared with other university towns within the commonwealth.  Total arrests for crimes increased 
3% from 2006 to 2007, most of which were Part 2 crimes.  The property loss in the Borough for 2007 was 
a substantial $414,862, up approximately 4% from 2006.  The total arrests by citation decreased 4%.  
From February to August there was a report and service reduction plan in place for the police department.  
If that had been continued there would have been a 29% reduction in total overall services.  The plan was 
evaluated in August and in September the department went back to 80 to 85% of what they were doing 
beforehand so the calls increased at that point.  The total loss in call volume was approximately 16% for 
the year.  January 2008 call volume is above average as compared to January 2007.  Traffic enforcement 
arrests showed no statistical change from 2006 to 2007.  Parking enforcement decreased 14% during the 
same time period.  Revenue from fines during 2007 decreased from 2006.  After examination, it was 
determined that the decrease came from fewer citations being issued for Part 2 crime during 2007.  Many 
of these are alcohol-related offenses, which show enforcement efforts are having a positive impact.  In 
2005 the alcohol-related offenses, which are primarily underage possession charges, numbered 65.  
These increased to 80 in 2006 and decreased to only 46 in 2007.  During the same time period public 
intoxication offenses for ages 21 and above increased, so more adults than underage offenders were 
picked up.  Chief Garlock noted there are other figures in the annual report denoting monthly averages 
and operational issues.  He stated that if anyone has any questions they can call him. 
 
Report on Status of New Police Officer Position – Chief Garlock reported that an advertisement is 
ready for Council’s approval tonight.  He and Mgr. Bickhart discussed starting salaries and the length of 
time for advertising.  Applications will be accepted until the end of February.  The Civil Service 
Commission has given Chief Garlock permission to seek the testing mechanism and he recommends that 
the same mechanism be utilized as the last time because it was a good testing mechanism.  A testing 
date for the written test, the physical examination and the physical fitness examination will need to be set.  
Mgr. Bickhart noted that the newspaper advertisement for the full time police officer is the same as 
previous ads with the exception of the starting salaries, which have been increased.  Chief Garlock feels 
a starting salary of $32,000 for a police officer with no prior experience and $35,500 for an officer with two 
years of prior experience will give people an idea of the salary structure in the Borough.  The ad also 
notes that there is a five-year increment in salary in the contract so the officer will transition from the 
starting salary to the base patrolman salary over five steps in five years.  Applications are due in the 
Borough office by February 27.  Mgr. Bickhart will place the ad in the paper. 
 
Burglary Article for Newsletter – Pres. Handlan asked Chief Garlock if he could do an article for the 
newsletter informing residents on ways they can protect themselves against burglaries. 
 
DH&L Fire Company, Ken Stettler – Ken reported there were 25 incidents in January as follows:  
3 automatic alarms, 1 brush fire, 3 CO alarms, 1 vehicle accident with extrication, 5 good intent service 
calls, 4 miscellaneous fires, 3 medical assists, 2 vehicle accidents without extrication, 1 odor 
investigation, 1 training and 1 structure fire.  The incidents occurred as follows:  1 in Freeburg, 1 in 
Jackson Township, 4 in Monroe Township, 6 in Penn Township, 9 in Selinsgrove, 1 in Shamokin Dam, 
2 in Sunbury and 1 in Washington Township.  The loss within the jurisdiction was $0.00.  January man 
hours total 430. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS FROM PRIOR MEETINGS: 
 
Committee Assignments – Pres. Handlan went over the committee assignment list, stating these are 
two-year assignments.  Anyone with questions can speak to her after the meeting. 
 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  3 of 14 

Appointments – The Vacancy Board Citizen Representative is currently Leon Fetteroff.  He requests that 
he be replaced and Wilhelm Reuning has consented to serve. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to appoint Wilhelm Reuning.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Presentation by Mike Miller/Bill Seigel on FFY 2008 CDBG Funding and past allocation of funds – 
Mike reported that the allocation amount was reduced by 3%, bringing the total to $111,064.  Four 
projects that meet the criteria of eligibility and fundability are being considered.  These include the Pine 
Street Reconstruction reimbursement, Front and Second Street Reconstruction, removal of architectural 
barriers for curb and sidewalk cuts, and low to moderate income sidewalk replacement, as well as 
administration fees.  Mike is recommending the reimbursement of the Pine Street Reconstruction in the 
amount of $58,474 which will go right into the Borough’s account.  He is also recommending allocating 
money to the Front and Second Street Reconstruction in the amount of $35,370.  This will enable 
application approval in spring or summer with design work beginning and bidding being done in the fall or 
winter to enable the project to be done in spring 2009.  Mike is also recommending the annual 
administration fee of $17,220 for the five years of the grant, starting from the application and following it 
through to conclusion.  C/P Herb asked if the Front and Second Street Reconstruction includes the curbs 
being torn up and replaced.  Mike replied that that is the intent of the project.  C/P Herb noted there is a 
place on North Front Street between Pine Street and East Chestnut Street where during the prior 
reconstruction a swale was created and never corrected.  Some effort was made to improve it but it did 
not correct it.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he was not aware of this but he will look into it.  Bill Seigel stated that 
when the engineer is brought in for the design work he will get together with Mgr. Bickhart to look into this 
issue and address it as part of the design. 
 
Motion by C/P Mengel to accept the recommendations.  Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mgr. Bickhart noted a public hearing will be held March 3, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Review List of Council Issues 
 
Mgr. Bickhart noted that he has added the issue of adopting rules of order and/or by-laws.  He stated he 
will get together with Solicitor Cravitz to go over some information from the Boroughs Association that 
addresses where Roberts Rules of Order does not accurately address issues that are common to 
boroughs.  C/P Viker asked what form this document would take and whether it would be to adopt 
Roberts Rules of Order with an amendment noting that the following issues would be handled differently.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated his understanding is that it is a document that adopts Roberts Rules of Order in its 
last revised edition and then stipulates except for certain issues that have to be dealt with in a slightly 
different manner.  C/P Anderson stated that she has seen a model from the Boroughs Association. 
 
Mgr. Bickhart noted that an attempt will be made this spring to clean out Weiser Run.  C/P Inch asked 
how work on Weiser Run is progressing with the school district.  Mgr. Bickhart replied that Coukart is 
working on this.  He is doing the design for the improvements that are necessary and then he will go to 
the school district with those designs for them to complete.  The school district has agreed to split the 
engineering costs with the Borough and allow Coukart to do the design.  Once the school district 
accomplishes this they are done with the issue. 
 
Mayor Carroll stated that he gave Solicitor Cravitz a copy of a junk car ordinance that he got from Chief 
Stark in Zerbe Township, Northumberland County.  Solicitor Cravitz stated he will go over this with Chief 
Garlock, who up until now was busy with year-end things. 
 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  4 of 14 

COMMITTEE / COMMISSION / BOARD REPORTS: 
 
FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE:  C/P Inch, Chairman 
 
Payment and Ratification of Bills 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to pay the bills.  Seconded by C/P Anderson. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

Statewide Tax Recovery, Inc. - Exoneration Requests – Mgr. Bickhart reported one exoneration 
request for Connie L. Reinard for 1999 and 2000 as she was deceased prior to those years. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to grant the exoneration request.  Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 

Recommendation of revised schedule of fees – C/P Inch reported that the committee is working on the 
fee schedule but they are not ready to make a recommendation yet. 
 
Review truck bids and award contract to lowest responsible bidder – Mgr. Bickhart reported that the 
Borough advertised for, received and opened two bids for a new Chevrolet truck.  Regester Chevrolet 
submitted a bid of $27,085 and Bob Fisher Chevrolet submitted a bid of $27,963.  These prices are lower 
than the state contract, which is for a Ford truck.  The Borough has a fleet of Chevrolets. 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to award the bid to the lower bidder, Regester Chevrolet, in the amount of $27,085.  
Seconded by C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mgr. Bickhart stated for the record that there is budget authority and money available to make this 
purchase. 
 
PUBLIC FACILITIES & SERVICES COMMITTEE:  C/P Hendricks, Chairman – No Report 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATION / PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:  C/P Mengel, Chairwoman – No 
Report 
 
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS:  C/P Viker, Chairman – No Report 
 
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:  C/P Anderson, Chairwoman 
 
Consider Junior Council Person Appointment – C/P Anderson stated this was done without a 
committee meeting.  She met with the two students who were interested in being a Junior Council 
Person.  One student is a resident of the Borough, which is the expressed preference of Council.  
C/P Anderson recommended appointing Morgan Botdorf to the position of Junior Council Person.  
Morgan is currently a junior, on student council, and had received a packet from Mayor Carroll.  She had 
good questions and C/P Anderson felt she would enjoy engaging in the process of being a Junior Council 
Person.  However, to do this Morgan will have to make some changes in her work schedule. 
 
Motion by C/P Anderson to appoint Morgan Botdorf.  Seconded by C/P Inch. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Pres. Handlan noted that Morgan will need a mentor and C/P Anderson stated she was willing to do this.  
Pres. Handlan asked when Morgan would be joining Council and C/P Anderson replied Morgan had 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  5 of 14 

intended to come tonight but she had to work.  She will give her employer notice of the meeting dates.  
Pres. Handlan asked if Morgan would have a ride to and from Council meetings and C/P Anderson stated 
she lives on the Isle of Que.  C/P Herb stated she is his next-door neighbor.  C/P Viker asked for 
clarification of the length of appointment.  C/P Anderson noted it is for the length of the school year, with 
Morgan being welcome to come during the summer months as a citizen if she wishes to.  Pres. Handlan 
asked that Mgr. Bickhart send a formal letter to Morgan and also to Kyle Long, the other applicant.  
C/P Anderson noted that Kyle has a special interest in helping with the Borough’s web page.  She noted 
he can apply again in another year, as he is only a freshman this year.  Mayor Carroll passed around an 
email from Linda Costa from the Boroughs Association and noted that it would be possible for the 
outgoing Junior Council Person to mentor the incoming Junior Council Person in order to make the 
transition go more smoothly.  He noted that other boroughs have had difficulty finding interested students 
who were borough residents, which is why the Council decided to allow applications from all students with 
preference given to a Borough resident.  Mgr. Bickhart asked when the application process would begin 
during the school year.  Mayor Carroll suggested beginning the process prior to the end of one school 
year in order to find a Junior Council Person for the beginning of the next school year.  Pres. Handlan 
expressed her hope that Morgan will stay on for her senior year also.  C/P Anderson suggested giving 
Morgan some time to experience Council meetings before asking her to make that commitment.  
Pres. Handlan noted it takes a good year to get comfortable at the Council table and Morgan would be 
given the option to continue on if she chooses.  C/P Viker stated that with Morgan potentially continuing 
through her senior year, this gives Council a year and three months to actively recruit within the Borough 
for a high school student to be the next Junior Council Person.  Mayor Carroll stated that he will work with 
Harvey Edwards to put out some announcements in the school, and perhaps put announcements in the 
Daily Item and also in the Borough newsletter.  Mgr. Bickhart asked for direction for the letters he will be 
drafting and whether he should offer Morgan the position for the rest of this school year with an option for 
her senior year.  It was the consensus of Council that this was how it should be worded.  C/P Herb 
pointed out that in that case Council would not be actively soliciting applications at the end of this school 
year.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he also wanted to express in his letter to Kyle when he should expect to apply 
again.  C/P Anderson stated that if there is a good junior willing to continue as a senior, Council could 
recruit a second person this school year in order to bring in a junior in the fall so there is always someone 
coming along.  C/P Inch noted his preference to have one Junior Council Person at a time.  C/P Anderson 
stated there could be an overlap, with one junior and one senior.  Pres. Handlan stated one Junior 
Council Person at a time should be sufficient.  C/P Anderson asked that Mgr. Bickhart include in the letter 
to Morgan that C/P Anderson will be her mentor. 
 
Borough Crew Vacancy – Mgr. Bickhart stated the person he wanted to have in for a second interview is 
not interested.  He has gone back to the list and is considering re-advertising the position. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE:  C/P Herb, Chairman 
 
C/P Herb noted that there are two pending issues that have been mentioned before:  the handicapped 
parking space downtown and expansion of the no parking zones on Broad Street. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION:  Earl Moyer, Chairman 
 
Recommendation for Preliminary Plan Approval for the SU Science Building Land Development 
Plan – Jen Lee with Derck & Edson presented some drawings showing the development area, with 
expanded parking lots, detention basins and the new science building.  The science building will have two 
stories along University Avenue and three stories in the back due to the slope of the land.  It will occupy 
the current parking lot, with new parking lots being built on the outskirts of campus, the largest being 
behind the current Admissions and Financial Aid building.  There is also a space for an expansion lot to 
be built as needed.  This will replace all the current parking and will add at least 48 new spaces.  This is 
in keeping with the parking study that Council approved in the fall.  There will be two dry detention basins, 
the bottoms to be planted with a wetland mix.  Derck & Edson has worked with the Planning Commission 
on a number of issues, including a screening buffer of evergreen trees along Weiser Run and bus 
circulation and consideration of people using the Children’s Center.  Jen passed around some three 
dimensional images of the science building prepared by the architect.  The building will have a brick 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  6 of 14 

veneer and a steep-pitched roof to match other buildings on campus.  The renderings also show the 
pedestrian improvements along University Avenue, some of which will be installed with the science 
building project.  Regarding Weiser Run, Jen stated that the existing wooded area will not be touched 
except for where the stormwater basin outlets need to be put in.  There is not a lot of evergreen material 
so the Planning Commission asked that more be put in.  C/P Inch asked if flow studies have been done 
for the detention basins as it concerns Weiser Run.  Jen reported that their engineer and the Borough 
engineer have to approve all the stormwater calculations related to the outfall of the two basins.  She 
stated this should result in less water going into Weiser Run than is currently going in.  She stated the 
original plan showed the outfalls coming out at a 90-degree angle into Weiser Run but the Planning 
Commission asked that they be turned in the direction of flow and this has been done.  Jen stated the 
outlet structures were also pulled back so they are not in the embankment of Weiser Run where it is very 
steep.  They are back more on the university property which results in a shallower, gradual outfall into the 
creek.  Jen stated the plan is to not fence the detention basins so they can be used as a study area by 
the biologists in the science building.  The basins will hold water longer than is usual in a detention basin 
which will benefit all the plant material in the bottom.  All the requirements of the stormwater management 
ordinance have been met.  Jen stated the university’s intention is not to make any improvements that will 
harm Weiser Run because the university loses ground whenever Weiser Run erodes.  C/P Viker asked 
for general information as to how many citizens live on property adjacent to Weiser Run throughout the 
length of the Borough.  Mgr. Bickhart replied it was roughly 50 properties.  Mike Coyne noted the science 
building will be LEED certified, which requires points from the Green Building Council.  One of the ways to 
get points is to do best practices with stormwater management. 
 
Mgr. Bickhart brought two issues to Council’s attention.  First, the Borough has a requirement to fence 
standing bodies of water such as the detention basins.  The Planning Commission addressed this issue 
and they were notified that the last plans that the university submitted were for the athletic fields on the 
south side of Sassafras Street.  These plans included a detention basin and the issue of fencing was 
brought up then.  That had a pond that would store a depth of water a little over 3 feet at maximum and 
would de-water in less than 24 hours.  Solicitor Cravitz advised Council at that time that he did not feel 
this applied to the ordinance provision of fencing in pools of water.  The minutes also speak to Weiser 
Run in general which often has more than 2 feet of water in it and there was no intention to fence that all 
the way along.  The plans for the athletic fields were approved acknowledging that fencing would not be 
required under the ordinances.  The science building project ponds are a bit deeper.  Jen reported for a 
100-year storm event the large basin maximum depth would be 4 feet 3 inches and the smaller basin 
maximum depth would be 3 feet 6 inches.  The large basin would de-water in 32 hours and the small 
basin in 25 hours.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Planning Commission has discussed this and is not making a 
recommendation to fence the detention areas.  Solicitor Cravitz stated he is researching some information 
before he gives his final recommendation on this, as some things have changed the past several years. 
 
The second issue Mgr. Bickhart mentioned is that the process Council is involved with tonight is one in 
which the Planning Commission and the engineer review the plans, and then the Planning Commission 
makes a recommendation.  The right of approval or disapproval resides with Council.  The next step in 
the process is for Borough Council to approve the preliminary plans.  The plans themselves are not 
preliminary, but it is the first step in the process.  The recommendation is therefore for Council to grant 
preliminary plan approval, and Mgr. Bickhart suggested that this be conditioned upon Solicitor Cravitz 
approving the liability indemnification and all outstanding issues between the Borough engineer and the 
designers be resolved in terms of stormwater.  There are still some issues being worked out.  Jen stated 
they are down to a page and a half and they are sure all conditions will be met.  Some of these were 
things that were not yet prepared for the last meeting.  She stated these conditions are acceptable to her. 
 
Jen addressed a parking concern that she heard expressed before the meeting.  She stated that the 
project will be done in a phased construction.  The first phase will be construction of the stormwater 
basins and everything associated with them, as well as construction of parking lots so they are ready to 
use prior to the current parking lot being demolished for construction of the science building.  C/P Inch 
asked for clarification that the detention basins are designed to handle stormwater from the entire project 
when completed as presented.  Jen replied that this is the case and it also includes the additional parking 
that is proposed for the future.  Pres. Handlan asked what the projected timeframe is for the construction.  



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  7 of 14 

Jen stated the first phase would begin in March 2008 with the science building construction beginning in 
August 2008 and occupancy happening sometime in August 2010.  Jen stated the plan also shows an 
addition to the current Arts building.  This is still in the design phase but it has been included in the 
stormwater calculations.  It will be a studio work space.  C/P Herb asked if the calculation of the additional 
parking spaces includes the additional spaces that will be by the railroad tracks.  Jen replied that the 
parking spaces being discussed at the moment are only those included in the science building project on 
the north side of University Avenue.  She stated the additional parking on these drawings has nothing to 
do with the West Village site.  C/P Hendricks asked about the traffic flow plan for the new parking lots and 
whether it will be one-way.  Jen stated the flow will be two-way traffic at both entrances.  She stated if the 
large parking lot was made one way it would be difficult for people to figure out, and there would be cars 
from over 400 parking spaces driving in front of the Children’s Center.  The most logical way to handle 
traffic flow was to have it be two-way traffic.  This will eventually work into the crosswalk and University 
Avenue improvements for pedestrian traffic. 
 
C/P Inch asked about soil storage during the construction phases and whether it will be secured so it will 
not wash into Weiser Run.  Jen replied that those rules and guidelines are very strict.  Dave Henry stated 
the university is watched closely during the construction phase.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that both projects 
were run by the fire company for their insight into responding to any potential fires there.  They had no 
problems with either of the projects before Council tonight.  Pres. Handlan expressed her concern about 
water runoff into Weiser Run, especially with all the other projects that are going on upstream, such as 
the Catholic Church and the Penn Township fields.  She asked if these projects are being looked at to 
see if there is any adverse effect on the Borough.  Mgr. Bickhart stated each of those projects has to 
address stormwater runoff individually.  He noted that Penn Township is as rigorous as the Borough is on 
these issues.  He stated he was provided copies of the plans for the Catholic Church, which includes a lot 
of stormwater management.  Mike Coyne stated the science building project begins with the detention 
basins which will catch all the runoff from the project.  Jen stated the sediment traps or basins will most 
likely be plain dirt during the construction phase.  After the project is done the basins will be dredged to 
the proper depth and then seeded.  She stated for overall stormwater management, the regulations and 
ordinances put in place by the Borough and DEP are all moving in the direction of making the site better 
than it is now.  Even when looking at each project on a case by case basis, the rule is that they have to 
be made better than they are now.  Adding all the projects together, there is still a net benefit.  Dave 
Henry stated again that construction is watched very closely.  Soil conservation people are onsite and if 
there is a breakdown in any containment the university is told, the contractors are put on notice and the 
issue must be addressed.  Jen stated that the university is in close contact with Mgr. Bickhart on Weiser 
Run and they have even met with the school district on their issues at the corner of the property.  The 
engineers have been very cognizant of this issue during the design process and have been involved in 
the dialogue.  C/P Inch noted there are erosion problems downstream in Weiser Run and asked if the 
university project will make that less of a problem.  Jen replied that it will not make it more of a problem 
and Mgr. Bickhart agreed, stating this project will not contribute to the sediment problem in the stream at 
all.  He noted that each project addresses their individual requirements, which has no adverse effect even 
though there may be dozens of projects going on at the same time.  They are all required to control the 
issues from the start through the end of construction.  Each project of multiple projects in a watershed is 
dealing very carefully with the requirement that they do not discharge any more runoff at any time than 
what is there before the project begins.  C/P Viker asked whether, based on today’s engineering, 
landscaping and architectural issues, construction near Weiser Run all the way upstream will generally 
result in less flow into Weiser Run because of retention ponds and stormwater management.  Jen replied 
that it will result in no additional runoff than what is currently going into Weiser Run, if not less.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated that one of the things the Borough put in their ordinance recently is the requirement 
that the discharge structures from the detention structures have an adjustable discharge which the 
Borough has the right to adjust after it is in place.  The calculations used almost always create a situation 
where a discharge from a basin is too great, and the Borough has the ability to throttle it back to make the 
basin do what it is supposed to do.  The net result of this is that there will be less water in Weiser Run.  
This process started with the high school football field additions, which has a huge detention basin 
underneath with a regulation device that allows the Borough to back water up in there.  This is at the 
headwaters of Weiser Run.  There are a number of projects in the Borough with these devices to allow 
fine tuning in the field so that the Borough has a practical way to ensure that the basins are doing exactly 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  8 of 14 

what the engineers calculate them to do.  He noted this was a meaningful change in the ordinance, with 
the first project being the football field at the university and the engineer’s idea to have some control over 
the device. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to grant preliminary approval with the conditions as noted previously.  Seconded by 
C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Recommendation for Preliminary Plan approval for the West Village Land Development Plan – Jen 
presented a drawing showing West Village, with the present West Hall and the two buildings that were 
approved last year and have been recently completed but not yet named, along with the parking area.  
The full West Village plan includes a total of seven residence buildings.  Jen is seeking approval for the 
remaining five buildings in the plan, along with some additional parking.  With this approval the university 
can move forward with construction on an as-needed basis.  There is a pedestrian walkway between the 
buildings to connect West Hall to the main campus.  The walkway is wide enough for maintenance 
vehicles and emergency access vehicles.  Most of the time the walkway is blocked off so, there are only 
pedestrians using it.  The buildings will be brick with steeply pitched roofs in keeping with campus 
architecture.  Additional parking is proposed across the creek at the Sassafras lot.  The parking lot will be 
pervious pavement, with a bed of stone underneath to let the water infiltrate back into the soil.  Additional 
detention is handled with underground pipes.  C/P Inch asked if the underground detention pipes are 
maintenance free or if they have to be checked every year.  Dave Henry replied that the university checks 
them and so far has not seen any significant buildup of infiltrated materials.  He stated they flush pretty 
clean.  Jen noted that even though she is asking for approval of all five buildings, at this time the 
university only plans to build the two buildings closest to the ones that were recently finished as well as all 
of the parking that is shown on the plan rather than just the portion needed for the two new dorm 
buildings.  Jen passed around three dimensional renderings of how the West Village will look upon 
completion.  Each building holds a maximum of 52 beds.  Additional parking spaces are being added; 
174 spaces are required to accommodate the total of seven buildings, but 188 spaces will be added right 
at the beginning.  Jen noted that on the housing site there is stormwater storage available underground in 
pipes so that some of what is left can be utilized.  In addition, there will be some small surface 
depressions with an inlet.  In a 100-year storm those inlets would have some ponding on the surface and 
then would discharge to pipes underground.  Mike Coyne noted that these buildings are also LEED 
certified.  C/P Herb asked if any consideration was given to building a pedestrian walkway from the 
parking lot to the Village rather than the current requirement of students to walk to the current grade 
crossing in order to cross the railroad tracks.  He asked if students would be jumping the creek or if the 
bank is too steep there.  Jen replied that the bank is too steep.  Dave Henry stated someone would 
undoubtedly try it, but it would be very difficult.  Jen stated that the railroad is not cooperative when it 
comes to adding crossings across their right of way.  C/P Anderson stated it took three years to get the 
original crossing approved.  Mike Coyne stated the university would like to do a pedestrian crossing but 
they do not want to hold the project up while they try to deal with the railroad.  C/P Inch asked if more 
stormwater retention would be added as more buildings are constructed.  Jen replied that there is some 
capacity left in the existing system, and smaller depressed detention areas for a couple of inches of 
surface water are being added right away.  The rest of the water detention will take place through 
underground oversized pipes which will hold the water.  The design is for the entire Village when 
completed and it is being done right away. 
 
Mgr. Bickhart suggested granting preliminary approval conditioned upon satisfying the engineer’s issues.  
He asked if there were any amendments to the liability agreement relative to this project.  Solicitor Cravitz 
stated that there are no changes to the surface.  Mgr. Bickhart explained that during the last project the 
Borough requested a liability agreement concerning any damage that would be done as a result of water 
detention in the parking lot.  That is in place and this new project will not change that.  C/P Anderson 
noted there is still an issue with the Conservation District permit.  Jen stated these issues are similar to 
what was mentioned in the last project, where reports are not yet ready.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that in a 
phased project like this, the preliminary approval will be for the entire site.  Council will anticipate granting 
final plan approval just for the two buildings and the parking lot build-outs.  The preliminary plan will then 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  9 of 14 

stay in abeyance until the next project comes along and then final plans will be approved sequentially for 
any number of phases beyond that.  Solicitor Cravitz asked what the Eastern Snyder County Regional 
Authority had to say regarding sewer capacity for this project.  Jen replied that she is in the process of 
submitting a full planning module for the sewer.  She stated a letter has been submitted but not yet acted 
upon.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Borough has carrying capacity for the project, but ESCRA has to deal with 
the treatment and phosphate and nitrogen issues regarding the Chesapeake Bay Compact. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to grant preliminary plan conditional approval.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Consider request to Rezone University Property north of University Avenue from R-1 or R-3 to 
RSP – Jen presented a drawing showing the current zoning.  She stated her company has been working 
with the Borough on updating the Selinsgrove Borough Comprehensive Plan in order to do some cleanup 
and organization from the university standpoint in zones that the university owns property in, and to get all 
the zones rezoned to an RSP zone which is more conducive to university activities as the university 
continues to grow.  This plan is being worked on and it will not be in place for several more months.  In 
the meantime, the university would like to move the Financial Aid office out of the building that it shares 
with Admissions into the building next door.  However, the neighboring building has never been used for 
anything other than a residence and it is in a residential zone.  To move such a university office use into 
the residential zone is not permitted.  Therefore, Jen is asking that the current R-1 and R-3 zones that are 
part of the science building project be rezoned as RSP so that the Financial Aid office can be moved.  
This is in keeping with the intentions of the comprehensive plan and all of the conversations with the 
Borough representatives regarding rezoning.  Jen noted that the property on the corner that is not 
university owned property is not being requested as part of the rezoning.  Mgr. Bickhart clarified that this 
is Ross Charles’ property.  C/P Anderson asked if the Padre’s office being in the house that the Financial 
Aid office wants to move to changed anything.  C/P Viker stated that the Padre resided there so it was his 
private study in his home.  Dave Henry stated this is correct and this was discussed with Council at the 
time the Padre moved in there.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that the rezoning does not have anything directly to 
do with the science building project plans, but it was necessary for the Zoning Hearing Board to grant 
variances because the two zones are inconsistent with the proposed university use.  As a means of 
keeping the projects moving along, they granted a variance for the expansion of parking lots to serve 
university functions in residential zones.  This was an expansion of a prior non-conforming use.  Had this 
requested rezoning already occurred, those variances would not have been required.  Mgr. Bickhart 
noted that the variances were a major step toward realizing that the rezoning needed to take place.  He 
stated had this science project been anticipated way back then, the rezoning would have been done then 
but this will now make those two variances moot.  Jen noted that there is a typo in her letter regarding the 
date on the third line from the bottom.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Planning Commission discussed this 
rezoning and has endorsed it.  C/P Viker wished to approve the rezoning request and Mgr. Bickhart 
explained the procedure that starts tonight with authorizing Solicitor Cravitz to draft the ordinance which 
will be an amendment to the zoning map.  Solicitor Cravitz explained this will be a four-month process 
with getting the ordinance together, advertising a public hearing, and then having an enactment, after 
which the zoning change will not go into effect for another 40 days after the enactment. 
 
Motion by C/P Viker to authorize Solicitor Cravitz to prepare the draft of the ordinance.  Seconded by 
C/P Herb. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mike Coyne stressed that if anyone has any issues with Weiser Run they should make him aware of it.  
Pres. Handlan stated in the last 16 years there really were not any problems until the construction of the 
development and the school.  She stated there were also some significant storms that impacted the water 
levels. 
 
ZONING HEARING BOARD:  _______, Chairman – Mgr. Bickhart noted they have not met yet to 
reorganize so they are still without a chairman. 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  10 of 14 

 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION:  Dalton Savidge, Chairman 
 
Mgr. Bickhart noted that the Civil Service Commission will meet following receipt of applications for the 
new full-time police officer.  The Borough office is facilitating this but after the applications are turned over 
to Civil Service the Borough office steps out of the picture as required by law. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD:  Richard Norman, Chairman 
 
Sheri stated Dick will be sending out a letter to his committee members.  C/P Hendricks reported the ice 
skating rink was open for seven days, with over 380 people using the rink.  Mgr. Bickhart encouraged 
Council members to visit the facility, which now has signage as Little Norway II. 
 
SHADE TREE COMMISSION:  Karl Maul, Chairman – No Report 
 
BOROUGH ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
 
MAYOR:  Pete Carroll 
 
Mayor Carroll reported that he has participated in two ribbon cuttings, at H&R Block and Country Squire.  
He also handed out some information regarding scams that have come up. 
 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR:  Robert Cravitz, Esq. 
 
Consider Adoption of Resolution # 2008-03, pertaining to exoneration of Tax Collector for 
uncollected 2007 Real Estate and Per Capita Taxes – Solicitor Cravitz reported this is a housekeeping 
resolution that is done every year to exonerate Michael B. Bolig from collecting the 2007 Borough 
delinquent real estate taxes, which this year total $13,418.11.  These will be referred to the Snyder 
County Tax Claim Bureau for collection.  If unable to collect they will be turned over for a tax sale. 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to adopt Resolution # 2008-03.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Authorize notification to Statewide Tax Recovery, Inc. of 2007 Delinquent Per Capita Taxes – 
Solicitor Cravitz reported this is also a housekeeping duty to authorize Statewide Tax Recovery to collect 
the Borough’s delinquent per capita taxes for the year 2007. 
 
Motion by C/P Inch to approve this authorization.  Seconded by C/P Mengel. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Update on the Petition of Omega Financial Corporation, pertaining to the Snyder County Board of 
Appeals’ decision on Omega’s recent appeal of their real property assessment – Solicitor Cravitz 
reported that the Snyder County Board of Appeals has not yet received information from their appraiser.  
Most of the information has been gathered and they are processing it.  The report will be shared with 
Council when it is ready.  As part of this, the county and the school district came up with an agreement for 
intergovernmental cooperation in the assessment appeal litigation.  This means there has been an appeal 
filed by Omega Financial Corporation (No. CV-558-2007), in regard to the real estate millage of 
January 1, 2006.  They want to have that changed as far as the assessment is concerned.  To fight this 
appeal, the three affected parties can share the cost, with Snyder County paying 23%, the Borough 
paying 13% and the Selinsgrove Area School District paying 64%.  Snyder County will be the contact 
service for the appraisal and they will get the expert.  This is how it has been done in the past.  The 
Borough and the school district will share the costs proportionately.  When the appraisal comes there will 
be a bill submitted after which Council can decide whether they wish to continue with the fight.  The 
school district and the county will also make the decision of whether or not to proceed.  Solicitor Cravitz 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  11 of 14 

stated Council can defer action on this, as they have since January, in order to see what the report says.  
They can then refuse to continue with the litigation or they can pay the 13% and continue on in the 
process.  Solicitor Cravitz will pass along to the county and school district that Council is still considering 
this.  He stated there is a similar situation with the Colonial plant in Freeburg, and Freeburg is still sitting 
on their decision to join.  C/P Anderson asked if there is any way to estimate what the 13% cost will be 
and Solicitor Cravitz stated that the initial report he got had the total bill in the neighborhood of $5,000, so 
the Borough’s share would be under $1,000.  Litigation would be more costly.  C/P Herb noted that the 
percentages represented the proportional amount of taxes that each entity receives.  It was the 
consensus of Council to wait before making a decision on this. 
 
Consider “Joinder” pertaining to Corrective Deed for AMP Incorporated property – Solicitor Cravitz 
reported that this pertains to a particular site on the old AMP property but it is not on the site the Borough 
purchased.  It is on the site owned by Snyder County, which is saying they do not want any type of 
development or disturbance of the soil in the site where volatile chemicals lie underneath the surface of 
the ground.  One of the Borough’s utility easements goes through this area and by joining in this 
corrective deed, the Borough would be saying that unless there were very dire circumstances they would 
honor the area and not disturb it or enter into the institutional control area.  The Borough is being asked to 
pass a resolution stating they will add their signature to the deed and join in it that they will respect the 
area even though it is not on Borough property but is subject to their easement.  C/P Herb asked if court 
approval is needed if the Borough were to discover there was some dire circumstance.  Solicitor Cravitz 
replied the Borough would have to go to DEP for waivers and deal with contaminated soils.  Mgr. Bickhart 
stated legally this really does nothing other than put it on the record that this is an understanding after the 
fact.  The ownership of the property has long since terminated.  No responsibilities are changed.  The 
agreement with DEP is that they are dealing with the contaminated area by leaving it undisturbed.  C/Ps 
Mengel and Inch asked for clarification of where this piece of property is.  Mgr. Bickhart explained that 
when coming off of Maple Street to the side entrance of the fire company, you would turn left and there is 
a little bit of a parking area there.  When you go a little bit further you get onto Borough property and then 
there are some parking stalls.  This site is at the boundary line, right before the Borough property in the 
parking area.  The materials sat where that parking lot was.  It’s no longer lined but it is paved.  No one 
uses it for a parking area now.  The side faces east before the little garages.  Pres. Handlan asked why 
Snyder County does not have to sign this and Solicitor Cravitz replied that it is going to them and by their 
recording of it they are accepting it and acknowledging that they will not do anything with the land that 
they own. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to enter into the Joinder.  Seconded by C/P Viker. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
BOROUGH ENGINEER:  J. A. Coukart & Associates 
 
Update on pending projects – Pres. Handlan expressed her concern that, with all the work that could be 
done in the Borough, David Street should not be included as it does not need any attention at this time.  
Mgr. Bickhart stated this can be readdressed at the time of putting out the bidding documents or awarding 
the contract.  Mgr. Bickhart reported that the plans for Selinsgrove Elementary are available and will be 
delivered to Council for the March meeting. 

 
BOROUGH TREASURER:  Sharon Badman 
 
Review Treasurer’s Report for January 2008 -   Pres. Handlan asked if there were any questions on 
the Treasurer’s report.  Hearing none, she stated that it is on file for audit. 
 
BOROUGH MANAGER / SECRETARY / ZONING OFFICER:  Mgr. Bickhart 
 
Non-Police Complaint Update – Mgr. Bickhart stated there was only one complaint since the last 
meeting and it was resolved by the next day. 
 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  12 of 14 

Update of PROPERTY TRANSFERS and BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED, Janet Powers, Deputy 
Zoning and Permit Officer – Information only 
 
Submission of “Complete Report to Council on the Financial and Administrative Activities of the 
Borough for FY 2007” – Mgr. Bickhart reported this “State of the Borough” report will be finished within 
the next week.  It is a requirement of the Borough Code that Mgr. Bickhart report and summarize the high 
points of the year and make recommendations for things to look at going forward. 
 
Notice concerning the proposed word plan for Source Water Protection Technical Assistance by 
the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection for the Selinsgrove Municipal Authority 
Water System – Mgr. Bickhart reported that he has been working with DEP on a project wherein they 
come in to evaluate the drinking water sources and make recommendations concerning where the waters 
are recharged.  The Borough uses well water.  DEP will do a detailed evaluation showing where the 
recharge areas occur and they will identify potential sources of contamination in that area.  The final 
document from DEP should be used by the Borough to control any potential drinking water contamination 
in the future.  The aquifer is very plentiful and of very high quality.  A scope of services should be 
completed by the next Council meeting.  This will also involve the Municipal Authority, which is the owner 
of record of the four wells.  There is no cost to the Borough for this; it is financed by DEP.  Pres. Handlan 
asked what other municipalities are taking part in this and Mgr. Bickhart replied that because the 
Borough’s water systems are in connection with Penn Township, they also will be involved as a 
participant in the study or as a participant in the review.  The last time the Borough was concerned about 
their drinking water it had to do with a feed lot operation in Penn Township and the proposal to apply hog 
manure close to and upstream from one of the wells.  The Borough did not have a leg to stand on at that 
time.  However, with this proposed document in place identifying the aquifer and in working with Penn 
Township to protect the aquifer these types of issues should be able to be avoided in the future.  The 
estimated recharge area that DEP is looking at is 55 square miles.  The aquifer runs through Monroe 
Township and on into Shamokin Dam and beyond.  This is the same aquifer used by the former Monroe 
Manor Water Company and the former Rolling Green Water Company.  Luke Bogar, who developed 
Rolling Green Water Company, had spoken with Mgr. Bickhart a number of years ago about this aquifer.  
Both of these water companies have now been purchased and are now private water companies and not 
eligible for participation in this study.  However, their wells, as a possible source of contamination of the 
Borough’s water, are involved in the study.  There were some concerns expressed by Monroe Township 
residents about a well that was proposed to provide landscaping irrigation water for the new Monroe 
Marketplace.  This proposed well is of such a capacity that it requires a permit from the Susquehanna 
River Basin Commission.  Drilling that well could threaten the aquifer.  Hopefully the DEP study will 
provide more information on that and the River Basin Commission will be imposing construction 
standards on the construction of that well so that the hole being punched into the aquifer does not allow 
contaminants to enter the water.  Mgr. Bickhart stated he has been working closely with Stacy Hinck, the 
new Monroe Township Manager, and she is working with the River Basin Commission to have some 
questions answered.  C/P Anderson asked if the River Basin Commission is likely to give approval for the 
irrigation well and Mgr. Bickhart replied that they are.  C/P Inch asked why Monroe Marketplace is not 
buying their water from the existing water company.  Mgr. Bickhart explained that the new well is just for 
irrigation and the marketplace will be buying water for domestic use.  Mayor Carroll stated the newspaper 
article talked about a large tank.  Mgr. Bickhart reported that this was for water storage for fire protection.  
He stated he will keep Council updated as this process progresses. 
 
Report concerning a Preliminary Opinion submitted for a request to construct a New 
Telecommunications Facility in the Borough – Mgr. Bickhart reminded Council that he had reported to 
them some time ago that a tower was proposed at the site of the former Creation Windows.  The Borough 
has received a request from an attorney representing the people who want to site the tower, asking the 
Borough for a preliminary determination on whether Council would grant approval under the Borough 
Ordinances.  Mgr. Bickhart reviewed this with Solicitor Cravitz and the preliminary determination is that 
this would not be approved.  Mgr. Bickhart has communicated this information to the attorney, indicating 
that there is an alternate site at the Borough’s water tank.  The proposed tower was 198 feet.  C/P Viker 
asked for clarification of the alternate location and Mgr. Bickhart explained that the tower was proposed at 
the Creation Windows property on the vacant part at the north end, and the alternate location is the water 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  13 of 14 

tower above the university where cell phone antennas already exist.  C/P Inch asked if the Borough owns 
any land in the industrial development.  Mgr. Bickhart stated only where the Borough has an agreement 
with Kidsgrove and where the university owns a piece of the French property, which is on the Sassafras 
end of Industrial Park Road.  Well No. 5, an undeveloped well, is in that location.  Joe Siro stated that 
over a year ago there was an article in the paper about the proposed tower and there was a meeting to 
review the plans in Harrisburg.  He asked why the meeting was not held locally.  Mayor Carroll asked if 
there was a height issue because of the airport.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the company did apply to the FAA 
for a waiver for the tower and it was granted.  That may have been the hearing that Joe Siro heard about 
in Harrisburg, but that was a couple years ago.  C/P Inch asked what company this is and Mgr. Bickhart 
replied it is Verizon.  Mayor Carroll thought the Borough just went through something last year with 
Verizon regarding an antenna on the water tower and changing the contract.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that 
was Cingular Wireless at that time.  He stated at that time he did mention this Verizon proposal. The issue 
with Cingular was that the Borough was being asked to reduce the lease payment and Mgr. Bickhart had 
pointed out to them that the site couldn’t be all that bad because a competitor also wanted to put in a 
tower close by. 
 
Statements of Financial Interest are to be completed and returned to the Borough Office before 
May 1, 2008 – Reminder for Council members 
 
Notice:  BSAB Spring Legislative Conference, March 30 to April 1, Grantville – Anyone interested in 
attending let the Borough office know. 
 
Update on Phillips Products – Mgr. Bickhart reported that both he and Mayor Carroll are receiving 
certified packages from Phillips Products concerning the closure of the facility and the laying off of all 
personnel.  They are now down to three or four people who will be there through February 29.  
Pres. Handlan asked if they own the building and if they will retain it.  C/P Inch stated he thought they 
wanted to sell the building.  Mgr. Bickhart stated the Borough has given all the known information about 
the building to a commercial real estate company that contacted him several months ago.  This is the 
company that found National Beef to go into the Townsend building in Monroe Township.  He also copied 
this information to Dave Hall, the CEO of the Greater Susquehanna Valley Chamber of Commerce.  Dave 
Hall has also gotten some inquiries and passed the information along. 
 
Spring Newsletter – Have all articles for the newsletter to Sheri by February 15.  Copy will be available 
for approval at March Council meeting, followed soon thereafter by final printing and distribution. 
 
Boroughs Association Meeting, March 13 at Bucknell University – Mgr. Bickhart reported that this 
meeting deals with municipalities who host a university.  They will try to pull together information to 
discuss the mutual concern about universities and payments in lieu of taxes and tax exemptions.  Each 
municipality is allowed to have no more than three people at this meeting.  This is a new initiative by the 
Boroughs Association.  C/P Viker stated he just attended a session for newly elected councilpersons and 
the trainers there reported that this meeting will be held at Susquehanna University.  Mayor Carroll noted 
that he and Mgr. Bickhart met with Chris Cap from PSAB about a year and a half ago on this issue.  
Things move slowly but Mgr. Bickhart had made a strong point that this issue needs to be addressed.  
The study that was done by C/P Inch was very helpful.  Mgr. Bickhart stated that the Pennsylvania 
League of Cities and Municipalities was the only entity that had actually tried to do anything.  They have 
lost some of their initiative and are no longer publishing their newsletter, “The Networker”.  C/P Inch 
stated in the last Boroughs magazine there was an article about a legislator from Northampton County 
who has initiated some legislation in Harrisburg to help impacted communities such as Selinsgrove.  The 
threshold was over 40% of the area being tax exempt, for which Selinsgrove qualifies.  Mgr. Bickhart and 
C/P Inch will attend the meeting.  C/P Viker will attend as long as the meeting is after 11:00 a.m.   
 
SELINSGROVE MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY – Donald Bottiger, Chairman – No Report 
 
EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY REGIONAL AUTHORITY – Bob Dagle and George Kinney, Chairmen 
– No Report 
 



Meeting Date:  February 4, 2008  14 of 14 

NORTH-EASTERN SNYDER COUNTY JOINT AUTHORITY – Bill Hetherington and John C. Bickhart 
– No Report 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Selinsgrove Brew & Wine Fest, July 19, 2008 – Pres. Handlan reported that SPI has approved this 
event.  This weekend is also Old Timer’s Day and Antiques on the Isle.  The brew and wine fest is a 
tasting event needing a special occasion permit from the Liquor Control Board.  In order to close roads 
and thoroughfares in the Borough for the event, written approval from Borough Council must be attached 
to the PLCB application.  The roads that will be closed include West Pine Street from Market to High 
Streets and two short portions of Union Alley off of Pine Street.  Pres. Handlan has spoken with Omega 
Bank and the library because they would have to close by noon that day.  The four-hour event starts at 
2:00.  It is just a tasting with no sales, and the entire area would be closed off to enable it to be a 
protected event.  Selinsgrove Brewing Company will be the lead in this, with at least 30 brewers and 
10 wineries present for the four-hour event.  Mgr. Bickhart noted the event will be a boxed-in area.  
Market Street will not be closed, but it may be necessary to close High Street.  Mayor Carroll noted that 
the closing is similar to what is done for the tree lighting ceremony during White Christmas.  
Pres. Handlan stated that there will be between 800 and 1,000 people in the closed off area.  Mayor 
Carroll asked if there would be parking at the school with shuttles as there is during the Market Street 
Festival.  Pres. Handlan stated this was not considered but there is still some time to look into parking.  
Mayor Carroll also stated that there will be no cash changing hands the day of the event.  All tickets will 
be sold over the Internet.  Pres. Handlan stated everyone who attends must be 21 or over.  Even 
designated drivers have to purchase a ticket.  IDs will be checked and it will be thoroughly patrolled with 
many people working the event that day.  C/P Anderson asked if there is enough information available to 
approve closing the streets.  Pres. Handlan replied that Mgr. Bickhart is the logistics person, and she 
noted that the approval letter must be submitted with the application for the permit which must go in this 
week.  She stated there is a resolution and Mgr. Bickhart stated there is a plan that will accomplish what 
needs to be accomplished with just those closures. 
 
Motion by C/P Herb to approve closing the street and alley as noted for the event.  Seconded by 
C/P Inch. 
 

AYES:  SEVEN (7) NAYS:  NONE  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Pres. Handlan asked Mgr. Bickhart to draft a letter for enclosure with the permit application.  She also 
stated that SPI has insurance and every brewery and winery that comes to the event must supply their 
proof of insurance also.  C/P Viker stated he has attended similar events in Austin, Texas where they are 
held annually and they are always very successful.  Pres. Handlan noted it is not a booze fest; it is a brew 
and wine fest, just tasting.  C/P Inch stated he was to two similar events last year.  Pres. Handlan also 
stated there will be entertainment for the four hours, and invitations are being extended to the restaurants 
downtown for food vendors.  The Kind Café will have a stand for coffee.  The event is well thought out 
and when the people leave the event they can go to local hotels and restaurants.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
Attachments: None 


